
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


ATLANTA FEDE8AL CENTER 

61 FORSYTH STREET 


AfLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8960 


DEC os Wil 
CERTIFIEP..MbIJ 
RFTURNRFl.,:Ii!!'IREQl;ESTED 

Mr. Hidctaka Yatagai 
President 
NA (wJtl$tries) inc. 
2651 Riverport Road 
Chattanuoga, Tennessee 37406 

Rc: N A Industries. In(.\ 

Consent Agreement and nnal Order 

Docket :-10. TSCA-04-2012-2607(b) 


Dear Me Yatagai; 

Enclosed is a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in the above~referenced 
matter. The original CAFO has been filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk anti served on the parlics. as 
directed in Scclion22.6 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice. 40 C.F.R. Part 22. 

Please refer to Section V of the eAFO for penalty infonnation and payment requirements. To en."Iure 
proper processing, the Respondent's nam!: and Docket Number for this case, identified above and in the 
CA1'O, shouJd he noted on any cashier1s or cenified check submitted in payment of the penalty, 

Also enclosed is a copy of a document entitled "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you 011 notice of 
your potential duty to disclose to the Securities and Exchange Commission any environmental 
enfofcr:rnent actions taken by the 1;. S. Environmental Protection Agency. Where used. in the document 
"SEC' refers to the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Should you have any que~tiof'lS about this matter or your compliance status in the future, please conta<:t 
Mr. Tony Spann of 'he EPA Region 4 ,tarr at (404) 562-8971. 

Sincerely, 

, ! ).j
/ ! . rJ'!;1\.. 

(~'.J~ ,;1 , "dKimbe(ly . Bingham 
Acting Chief 
Pesticides and To"J..· 

Substances Branch 

Enclosures 

Inlem61 Address (URl). http./lwww,epa.gov 

AllcyiliedIRm:yclabltJ ,Plilo!li(j WIlli Vugalabl" O~ Ba&&d Inks on Recycled Paper (Mlnimum:Jtl':k Pn.~..,,,m''''U$rj 


http:http./lwww,epa.gov


In the Matter of: 

NA Industries, Inc. 

'B"" :x 	 en.... 
CONSENT AGREEM~:NT AND FlNAL ORDER 

I. !Ii.tUrf ofth. Action 

1. 	 TIllS is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Toxic Substances 

Control Act (TSeA), 15 U.S.c. § 2615(.), and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of 

Practice Governing Administrative Assessment ofCivil Penalties and the 

Revocation!rerrninal10n or SlL~s1on ofPermits (Consolidated Rules). 40 C,P,R. 

Part 22. Complainant is the DirectOr ofthe Air, Pesticides and Taxies Management 

Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4, Respondent is NA 

lndustrie~. Inc. 

2, 	 Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement p1.1fSUant to 

40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegalions described 

herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 

testimony; the making: of any argument; or the adj udication ofany issue in this matter; 

and in accordance ,,;th 40 c.P.R. § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and Pinal Order 

(CAFO) win simultaneoll..'{ly c.ommence and conclude thi$ matter. 
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II. Preliminarr Statements 

3. 	 The authority to take action under Section 16(a) ofTSCA, 15 U.s.C. § 2615(a), is vested 

in the Administrator of ,he EPA. The Admini,trator of the EPA has delegated this 

authority under TSCA 1D the EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 12-2-A, dated May 11, 

1994. 

4. 	 Pmsuant to Section 15 ofTSCA, 15 UXC § 2614, it is unlawful for any person to: 

(1) fail or refuse to comply \\<ith any ru1e or order promulgated pursuant to Sections 4, 5; 

8,12 or 13 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C § 2603, § 2604, § 2607, § 2611 or § 2612); (2) use for 

commercial purposes a chemical substance or mixture that the person knew or had reason 

to know was manufactured, imported, processed, or distributed in commerce in violation 

ofTSCA Section 5,15 U.S.C. § 2604; (3) fail to maintain records, submit reports or 

infol1nation~ or permit access to or allow copying ofrecords as required by TSCA; and 

(4) refuse to penni! entry or illllpection .>authorized by Section II ofTSCA, 15 U$.C 

§ 2610. 

5. 	 Any person who v10lates a provision ofSectioil 15 QfTSCA shaH be liable for a civil 

penalty in an amount not to exceed $25,000 for each such violation, in accordance with 

Section I6{a) ofTSCk The Debt Collection Imp,ovement Act of 1996 requires the EPA 

to review and adjust penalties, as necessary, for inflation at leas.t once every four years. 

As such, pursuant to the Adjustment ofCivill\t!ouetary Penalties for Inflation Rule, 

40 C . .F.R. Part 19, the revised maximum penalty for each violation occurring after 

January 30, [997, through March 15, 2004, is $27,500; for each violation occurring after 

March 15,2004, through January 12, 2009, the maximum pet1lllty for each viol.tion is 

$32,500; and for each violation occurring after January 12, 2009, the maximum penalty 
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for e"dch violation is $37.500, Each day a viulatiun continues may constitute a separate 

violation. 

6. 	 All Confidenlial Busine., InfUrm.tion (CBI) in this CAFO has bccn redacted. To 

dctcnninc the identity of the chemical substance referenced in this CAPO or the CBI that 

was deleted (CBt deleted), Complainant and/or Respondent should refer to the letter, 

dated September 19,2011, sent to the Respondent id ...mtifying the potential violation~ of 

TSCA and notifying the Respondent ofthe opportunity to show cause why the EPA 

should not proceed with 8n enforcement action. 

III. Spe<iflc Allegations 

7. 	 Respondent owns and operates a chemical importing and manufacturing business located 

at 2651 RivcrpOl't Road, Chattanooga., Tennessee. 

8. 	 Respondent is an importer a.~ the term is defined in 40 C,F ,R. § 704.3. 

9. 	 On June 8~ 2011~ an authQrized agent ofEPA Region 4 conducted an audit at 

Respondent's office pursuant to Section 11(0) ofTSCA. 15 U.S.C. § 261O(a). 

lO. Respondent imported a reportable quantity of(eBl deleted) hereinafter referred to as 

Chemical A in 2005. 

1 L 	 Respondent imported a reportable quantity of (CBI deleted) hereinafter relerred to as 

Chemical B in 2005. 

12. 	 Chemicals A and B were subject to the 2006 Inventory l'pdete Reporting (ICR) as 

described in 40 C.F.R. § 710, Subpart C. 

13. 	 As described in 40 C.F.R. § 710.53, the 20061UR reporting period for Cbemicals A and 

H was August 23, 2006. through March 23, 2007. 
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14. Respondent failed to submit the 2006 IUR Report to the EPA for Chemicals A and B 

during thnepofling period described in 40 C.F.R. § 710.53. 

15. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.f.R. § 710.1(0) ll1ld Section 15(3) of TSCA, it is unJawlhl for any 

person to fail or reH.lJ::e to submit information mjuired undt.-r lht: IUR Regulations. 

IV. Consent Agreement 

16, 	 For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictitmal aHegations set forth 

above and neither admits nor'rlenies the factual allegations set forth above. 

17. 	 Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right 

to appeal the proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

18. 	 Respondent consents to the assessment of the penalty proposed by the EPA and agrees to 

pay the civil penalty as set forth ill this CAFO. 

19, Respondent certifies that a<; of the date of its execution of this CAfO" it 1s in compliance 

with the TSCA regulations referenced in this CAFO. 

20, 	 Compliance with this CAPO shalt resolve the allegations of the violations contained 

herein. This CAFO shall not othe""ise affect any liability of Respondent to the United 

States. Other than a::; expressed herein, neither the EPA nor Complainant waives any right 

to bring an enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state 

statute, regulation or permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial 

endangennent, or to pursue criminal enforcement. 

21. 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO, 

The parries agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requiremC'..ots ofTSCA. 
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22. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.$(c)(4). the following individual is authorized to receive 

service for the EPA in this proceeding: 

Tony Spann 
Chemical Products and Asbesws Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Fors,1h Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960 
(404) 562·8971. 

V. (t'lnal0rder 

23. 	 Respondent is assessed a civil penalty ofTHlRT\, SEVE~ THOUSAND TWO 

HUNDRED THIRTY DOLLARS ($37,230) which shall be paid within thirty (30) days 

of the effective date. 

24, 	 Respondent shall remit the penalty payment by either a cashier's Qf certified check made 

payable to the "Treasurer, United States of America," The Respondent shall note on the 

face of the check the Respondent~s name and the Docket ~umber associated with 

the. CAPO. The penalty payment shall he sent by one of the follnwing methods to the 

address indentified for the method cbosen. 

Address 1'01' payment submittal using the United States Postal Service: 

U,S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979077 

St. Louis, Mi;souri 63197·9000. 


Address for payment submittal using other mail service (e.g., Federal Express, 
United Parcel S,..rvice (UPS). DHL. etc.): 

U.S. Bank 
IOOS Convention Plaza 
Mail SlaliQII SL·MO·C2GL 
St Louis, Missouri 63101 

Contact Per<on: '1atalie Pearson (3l4) 418-4087. 
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25. At the time of payment. Rcspondcm shall scnd a S(..-parate copy of the check and a written 

statement that the payment is being made in accordance with this CAFO, to the following 

persons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearilig Clerk 
U.s. EPA Region 4 

61 Forsytb Street. S.W. 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960; 


Tony Spann 

Chemical Products and Asbestos Section 

U.S. EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960; and 


8aun.di Wilson 

Office ofEnvlTOnmental Accountability 

U.s. EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 

Atlanta. Georgia 30303·8960. 


26. 	 For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled. 

and agrees not to attempt. to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 

pursuant to this CAFO, Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 

constitute a violation of this CAFO. 

27. 	 Pursuant to 31 U.S.C, § 3717, the EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts 

owed to the United States: and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 

delinquent claim. Interest win therefore begin to accrue on the eivi] penalty from the date 

of entry ofthis CAFO, irthe penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will also 

be assessed to cover the administrdtive costs. both direct and indlrect, of overdue debts. 

In additio~ a late payment penalty charge shall be applied on any principal amount not 

paid within 90 days of the due date. 
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28, 	 Complainant and Respondent shaH bear their O'hn COStS and attorney fees in this matter, 

29. 	 This CAFO shall be hinding upon the Respondent and its successors and assigns. 

30. 	 Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or she is 

fully authori7.ed by the I'"rty represented to enter into this CAFO and hereby legally binds 

that party to this CAFO. 

VI. Effective Date 

3 L 	 The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which tile CAFO is filed with the 

Regionalllearing Clerk. 

AGRE.:U AND COJliSENTED TO: 

Respondent: NA Industries, Ine. 
Dockel No.: ·rSCA-04-2012-2607(b) 

By ;?~~ 

Kame: HZLJG f:ft:,A: 'ti7d<h"""d,-,;:~______ 


Title: PRl? 51;l;>E<l!+7__ 


Date: 	 11.-1-11 

, • Pesticides and Toxic!> 

Management Division 


o-~
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this L day of 

By: .;> k- tJ· 
Susan B. Schub 

Regional Judicial Officer 
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Complainant: loS. EU",'ironme tal Protection Agency 

Ily: 

'erly H. Banister, irector 
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CERTlFICA1'1': OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the date set out below, I moo the original and onc copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a tmc and correct copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of NA Industries, Inc., Docket 

Number: TSCA-04-20I 2-2607(b), to the addr..""es listed below. 

Hidetaka Yatagai (via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 
President 
NA rndustries., Inc. 
2651 Riverport Road 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37406 

Tony Spann (via EPA"s internal mail) 
Chemical Products and Asbestos Section 
1.:.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan \via EPA's internal mail) 
Office ofEnvimnmcntal Accounmbmty 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 forsyth Sireet. S.w. 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303 

..:- --,
~. 

Date: l~2 -a-I (-­ . 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA R.;gion 4 
61 Forsyth St.. S.W. 
Atlanta. GA 30303 

(404) 562-9511 


By: 
Patricia A. Bullock 


